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three years to complete at a cost exceedi

the church records for building this structure are sketchy. There is a
record that Ebenezer Clifford was paid 30 pounds, 15 shillings, 6 pence.

Except for a two-story addition to the rear of the church in 1930 and
the addition of an elevator in 1961, the exterior of the church remains
much the same. It probably was not painted at first except around the win-
dows. Later it received a coat of white paint in the 1830's, followed by
two shades of tan. It was not until 1940 that it again became white,

Mr. Clifford, independent of others, began to change the meetinghouse
design to that of a church. The long axis is parallel to the street, as in
a typical meetinghouse. The entrance, still on the long side, is much more
elaborate than that of the earlier ones. There is a projecting two-story
bay with three doors below and three windows above, and windows on either
side. Over this rises the tower, with an octagonal belfry, lantern and
dome. '

Another unusual feature is the hip roof, which dates back to the days
of the square meetinghouse. There is a cornice between the upper and lower
tiers of windows like that at the eaves, across the front and rear of the
building. Pilasters adorn the porch and corners of the building. The one
Palladian w1ndow is the pulpit window at the rear of the building--still
opposite the main entrance as it used to be, but now raised to the second
floor of the addition. ' '
The town placed a clock with four faces in the tower in 1848. The
face of this clock was large and was changed in 1950 when William Dudley
redesigned .it. 1In 1956 a new electric clock was installed. 1In 1962 the
false face of the clock on the rear of thé tower ‘was removed. '

Dr. William G. Perry's Exeter in 1830 gives a vivid picture of the
interior of the building. '"The outside entrance of the building was the
same as now. Two doors led from the vestibule directly into the audience
room. From each door an aisle ran to the side of the pulpit, which faces
the double row of slips that occupied the middle of the room. From the
main aisle two other aisles branched off at right angles, then turned
parallel, running between the square wall pews and an inner row. These
square pews (of the inner row) were extra large.... Square pews often had
extra chairs in them. A good, broad gallery extended along three sides.
It was reached by flights of stairs leading from the vestibule. The pul-
pit was high. The room was very high, and consequently cold, and the win-
dows rattled well on windy days. There were two not very large cast iron
box-stoves near the pulpit; the funnels ran above the aisle, turned near
the singer's gallery, and united in a large smokepipe that connected with
the outside air.... The pews in the meetinghouse were made of perfectly
clear pine and panelled. I think they were unpainted. The gallery, pulpit

the townspeople, the third on this site. d}t was started in 17 and td%
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Continuation Sheet

Description (cont.)

and the window casings were painted white. The room with its cor-
rect proportions, its fine panelling, and its lofty ceiling was
worth seeing...."

In 1838, the parishioners decided to remodel. All the square
box pews were removed and the room was partitioned into two floors.
The upper floor became the sanctuary with the pulpit at the west
end. The original pulpit window was covered over on the inside.
The lower floor was to be used as 'lecture rooms.'" Today you may
still note on the panelling on the first floor where the pews were
attached. The sounding board which hung over the pulpit now hangs
in the first floor hallway. The pulpit window was carefully raised
to the second floor level when the addition was built to the rear
of the church in 1930. This serves as a kitchen downstairs and a
small meeting room above. In 1961 an elevator was installed on the
eastern side of this addition.
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This building is unusual because it does not resemblé\Qghsztggetlng-
houses built during this transitional period. :

1) The early meetinghouses with their long axis parallel to the street,
tower if present at one end, main door in the middle of the long side with
the pulpit opposite were barn-like in appearance.

1) Palpit 2) o 30 Palpit
N ot/
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Main En’t Mam ha e thru Tower E tr'an o Nl'rqa\ ba du‘,.
2) The trans:.trja.rc')ctfal building started the trend toward the. 2?1uz:ch as“?wey 3 ceors

know it today, with the main entrance through the tower.

3) Mr. Clifford designed his meetinghouse with the only entrance on the
long side, through a protruding bay which was surmounted by a tower, belfry,
lantern and dome. No meetinghouse in New Hampshire before 1798 possessed

a hip roof. The source of Llifford's ideas is not known, but he was the
first master-builder to apply Georgian patterns to a New Hampshire meeting--
house. Another interesting difference is that the only entrance was through
the three doors in the bay. L,

The meetinghouse was a place for secular as well as religious gather-
ings. In the 1830';,/the building was host to important trials, the most
famous being the Cilley will case when Daniel ngﬁzer and Jeremiahbyason
were opposing counsel. For its last great secular gathering, Danéfl Webster
was again present, presiding over the 50th anniversary celebration of Dr.
Benjamin Abbot's service as principal of the Academy. There was a great
crowd (the meetinghouse was built to hold 800 people) as well as notables

bf the day. The meetinghouse, whose pulpit and pews had just been removed,
was the only place large enough to contain such a gathering.

The 1798 meetinghouse is the present-day representative of the chdﬁch
brganized in 1639 by John Wheelwright who founded the town.
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